SM-26
(See also: SM-179 &
SM-406)

Yob
S M «26 and 179
POINT LOOKOUT MONUMENTS
Point Lookout State Park 1876 and 1910

The smaller monument (STMA-26) was erected in 1876 by the people
oFf St. Mary's, Charles and Calvert Counties to honor the Confederate
soldiers and sailors who died while prisoners at the Point Lookout Fort

federal prison camp. Its construction was g part of the activity during

the Centennial of the American Revolution.

The larger monument (STMA-179) was erected in 1910 by the federal
govermment after the remains of the Confederate prisoners had been
prison compomd
.moved to this site from the £3¥ site at Point Lookout. The inscribed base
records the names of 3,389 dead and includes the word "Unknown!' of whieh-b"é1pbq

there wer= many.
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4. OWNER OF PROPERTY, continued

Department of Defense,'U.S. Navy; Naval Air Test Center
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7. DEsCRIPTION - = o B
. {Check One)
CONDITION O Excellenr (] Goed [ Fair [ Deteriorated [ Ruins £ Unexpased
(Check One) (Check One)
X Alrered ] Unoltered ] Moved 3 Originol Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT ANO ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The site of Point Lookout Civil War prison .and hospital
for Confederates is located in lower St. Mary's County,
Maryland, at the confluence of the Potomac River and the
Chesapeake Bav. Presently a State Park, the archaeological
district is bounded on the north by Tanner Creek, on the
east by the Chesaresake Bay and on the south and west by
the mouth of the Potomac River. The district includes
the site of the prison camp, hospital, fort, and other
associated structures, and the present-day U.S. Coast
Guard lighthouse which dates, in part, prior to the Civil War.

From 1849 to 1938 the Chesapeake Bay shoreline receded
as much as 950 feet. A riprav revetment installed along
the Eastern Shore in 1973 has halted the erosion.. While
the shoreline of the Potomac section of the site has retained
basically the same shape, variation as much as 50 feet
since 1952 has probably resulted in the destruction of
archaeolqggical remains in that area (Kent, 1974: 4). "The
Point has been victimized by severe erosion, sand blows,
and destructive storms over the years to the point that
the surface of the land reveals little of what existed
during the Civil Var or prior to it." (XKent, 1974: 9)

With the modernization of the park facilities and the
construction of the riprap revetment, an archaeological
survey was conducted in 1973 to determine the location and
extent of archaeolocgical remains. of the Civil Jar and
pre-Civil War structures and facilities. A lithograph made
of Point Lookout between 1863-64, provided essentlal
information for the location and interpretation of the
arcinaeological remains uncovered. Areas lost to erosion

were surveyed by underwater erchaeologists and found to
contain no in situ material althouch a more detailed survey
is needed. Wwnile erosion has claimed a large porticn of the

site along the eastern shore, sicgnificant areas of the
prison conmplex reraln. They include:

At least one half of the large, wheel-
shaped Hammond CGeneral Hospital; the guarter-
master's oZfice; stables; various sutlers;
possible the wharf and warehouses close by; the
original licght hcuse and bucy shed, (still standing);
several hosrvital wards to the north ¢cf Hammond
General Hcspital; the extreme western portion of
the Rebel Prison Canp; the cattle vard; a line
of rifle pits; Fort Lincoln; and, the majority
of the encamrments located along the Potomac shore,
to" narme a few.

In addition, the presence of two residences
predating the Civil War are indicated, and
there are likelvy to be Indian camps close at hand
(Popes Creek pottery, liddle Woodland period)
(Rent, 19/&. 37)
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7. DESCRIPTION, continued

It is the only remaining standing structure that was
present during the Civil War occupation. The Coast Guard
lighthouse at the extreme southern tip of the peninsula
was constructed in 1830 and remained in continu&l use until
1966. From 1878 to 1948 the lighthouse and surrounding
area served as a Coast Guard station. The lighthouse
is a two-story frame residence with a hip roof. The light
is located at the apex of the roof. An engraving of the
area as a Civil War orison camp indicates that the light
rested on a much taller base eguivilent in height to the
two story residence. The light has not been in service
since 1966.

The first major Civil War structure erected at the
Point was the Hammcnd General Hospital which extended nocrth-
ward Irom the L.gntnousa and encompassed the southern
portion of the Point from the shores of the Potomac to th
beaches of the Chesapeake. The hospital rested on wooden
posts driven 1n‘.o the scft sands of the Point. While o0
moulds and nail alignments have been reported from this
area, the exact position of the hospital has not been
determined. The plans for the hospital, which Jjudging
the 1863-4 lithograph were faithfully executed, called
a hospital:

oy
]

which consisted of a series of buildings forming

a circle, twentvy in all, arranged like the spokes
in a wheel. The buildincs 1ncluded fifteen wards,
175 by 25, and one building 175 by 50, used as tae
headguarters for the doctors, for linen, and

other stores. These sixteen buildings were connected
by a circular roofed corrider eicht feet wide, and
one hundred cne feet in circumference. The space
between each two of these buildings was thrity-six
feet; and in the angle of the circular szace,

four buildings, each 77 by 25 were erected: (c)
the Charpel, (&) the Half-Diet Xitchen, (e) the
Library and Reading Room, and (£) the Knapsack

and Baggade Room. A 20,000 gallon water tank

was provided to flood the hospital in case of fire
(Beitzell, 19272: 19).

The cottaces, hotel, and other structures datinc before
the Civil War occupation when the Point was a fashionable
resort and bataing place were converted into hospitals with
the excepticon of those occunied bv surgeons, the officers cf

(Sce continuation sheet No. 2) GP0 828.704
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7. DESCRIPTION, continued

of the remains of a possible bulldlng which was apparently
burnt down instead of torn down in preparation for the
fort's erection. This feature was uncovered by bulldozers
preparing for the placement of a riprap revetment along the
fort's western wall. The fort is sguare in plan with earthern
parapets forming a walkway around the perimeter. Three of the
corners are rounded and extend beyond the sguare perimeter.
The fourth corner has been eroded away as has been the western
wall. These corner protrusions are probably gun emplacements.
The outer wall slopes down to a moat or ditch which surrounds
the fort._ The interior walls were prossibly reinforced by
wooden posts. A depression of the south wall marks the entrance
(Kent: 1974: 12).

The union regiments were stationed at the Point camped
along the southexn shores of Lake Conoy Zfrom the Potcmac
to the Chesapeake sheres. While the eastern camps have been
lost to the Bav, the vestern area has produced archaeological
features connected with daily camp activities. Excavation
in the area north of Fort Lincoln . revealed a double oven
used in the preparation of food and rossibly bullets. Other
areas north of the Fort have producsd surface finds of numerous

minie balls, rmusiet balls, poorly formed varieties of minie
balls, and lead spews all indicative of bullet making activities|

Kent speculates cf the basis of +this data that each company
was responsible for the manufacture of its own bullets (1974: 2¢)
Limited testing of two residential sites located south
of Lake Conoy produced debris of the eighteenth and nineteenth
century. Ironstcne, pearlware, brown salt-glazed stoneware,
blue and green shell-edces pearlware and brown oxide combed
yellow slipware was found. "Tha presence of brown salt-glazed
stoneware 1s scmewhat indicative of a late seventeenth and
early eichteenth century component at the site." (Ke nt, 1974:30)
The residence on the scutheast shore of Lake Conoy produced
sinilar artifacts but of a larger size suggesting that the
area has escared cultivation. The residences were propably
of low or micddle incecme status. '
The small zox hospital on the north side of Lake Conov
and the Union soldiers burial ground north of the present
primitive camp &rea have not been located. The Confederate
"Grave Yd&rd No. 1" north of the prison camp area may be
representead by an alignment of depressions (XKent, 1974: 18).

GPO 821.722
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Containing a peak population of 20,110 prisoners in
April of 1865, Point Lookout was the largest Union
prisoner of war camp for Confederates, With a 25 per-
cent death rate, the Point Lookout prison surpassed
the death *ate at Andersonville even tn 1ouch the Hammon
General Hospital with 1,400 beds was located at the

site. The 1 1uuaa1twes cormitted at Andersonville ers
repeacec at Pcint Loockout but have remained hidden tensath
the driftinc sands of the Point and wltﬂln the custy
documents of covernmental acen01es. Archaeolocical
investications b] Jonathan Kent (1974) and docurmentary
researci by Bdwin Be¢tzall (1972) provide excellent
sources oif information about the historv of the site znd

1ts present conditicna. Beitzell's investigations
revealed the site nct on l} ccntained a hospital, tacing
area, and a wrisoner of war depot, but also was the
headguarters of the St. “ar"'s Counbv lMilitary D*erict,
established to control the Dro-souta local pooulation
The site was the orimary cbjective of Bradley's raicd
in 1864, which wiile d troving tran 1scortation and
communication uetwor:s round Baltimore an Wasnincton
was deprived of attack nc Point Lookout and releasing
the prisoners becaus e ublication of the olan.

Named St. Micha ner Andrew White, S. J.,
the area of Point Lo S one oi the earliest land

i nted on August 30 l63e To
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8. SIGNIFICANCE, continued

of the Civil War occupation. One of the earliest commercial
resorts in Maryland, the Point's recreational assets were
recognized in 1857 by William C. Johnson who led, the develod-
ment of a hotel and over one hundred summer cottages
(Beitzell, 1972: 3, 19).

Beginning in July of 1862, the pleasant atmosphere of the
Point was replaced by the serious task of preparing facilities
for the Civil War wounded. The wheel shaped Hammond Ceneral
Hospital was completed by August of 1862 at which tim
350 Federal wcunded pecame the first patients. The hCSD‘ta'
also accepted some Confederate wounded. After the Battle oI
Gettysburg, the 8,000 to 10, OOO Confederates injured at the
battle necessitated the conversion of the Point into a prisioner
of war depot as well as a hospital. Con nstructed to nouse a
peak population of 10,000 priscners, the camp surpasséd =

that ficure in 1864. The two separate enclosures housinc the
officers ancé enlisted mcn were later used to house enlisted men
when the officers were transferred to other camps to prevent
escapves. The prisonnrs llVﬁd in cloth tents; recuisiticns

for wooden barracks being denied by the Secretary of War whose
policy was to treat the Coniederate prisoners in a similar
manner to that received by Union prlsbners in Con;eaerate

camps. Unlike the Confederates, the Union officials had tze

means and cacacities to rectify the cevlorable prison conditicns
but the eve for an eye policy oi the rederal bureaucrats was tne

ultimate cause of the high death rate at Federal prisons

—

which amounted to at least 3,455 Cecniederate deaths at Pcint

)

)

Lookout (RBeitzell, 1972). This is a conservative estimate )
according the Beitzell who feels that an ultimate toll of over
4,000 deaths may scme day be realized.

While guarded by the battle-tested 2nd an 'd 12th reciments,
New Hampshire Volunteers, the “YlQCﬂerS received fair treatmentc.
But with the arrival of draftees anc egro troops,tdv plicht
of the priscners worsened as 38 or mor e prisoners were shotT wizh-
out cause and th2 guards responsibie qwt bvcugnt to terms.
Humanitarian efforts by local residents and southern fficials
were constantlv, frustrated by the Federal government.

With l‘craaSLng nurbers cf prisoners, supplies, facilities,
and water werc in short supply resulting in an increasad
death rate. Acvprouimately 1,532 rrisoners died during the
last seven monihs of the prisons use. "By July 5, 16865, all
the prisoners had baen released excect a few in the hospital:
and on July 13, Foint Looxout was cfficially discontinued
‘as a garrison post..."(Beitzell, 1972: 41)

(See continuaticn shect No. 5) GPo o212t
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8. ~SIGNIFICANCE, continued

In 1866 the Federal Government took steps to dismantle
the prison camp and establish a National Cemetery. The
camp was subsecuantly dismantled and the remains of the
dead removed or reslocated. In e twentieth century the
area reverted back to recreational use which continued
after the lané was purchased by the State of Marvland in 1962.
Since that time the State has boeh developing the recreational
potential of the site but has until i1 recently ignored the
historical valus. The State has taken measures to inventory
the historical resources, to ¢ sck the erosion, and to prevent
casual éigging for relics by informed members oif the public.
The rich archaeolcgical and QlSLO ical resources of the district
are only beginning to be recognized.

GPO 921.724
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‘I who died at Paint Lookout Prison is adjacent to the state
i;gg;k*j%i is the only monument €Ver erected by the Federal
V_, overnm

. \ el
“ 3 <

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Point Lookout is a narrow flat area at the extreme
southernmost tip of St. Mary's County, at the junction
of the Potomac River and the Chesaveake Bay. It is-almost—
surrounded by tidal waterﬁxiuui_is—qne—e&?ﬂﬁhrﬂﬁes%—beau%i£u1
i S /SL«;«Lw‘

It is the site of the 500 acre Point Lookout Maryland
State Park, which includes the Civil War fort known as
Fort Lincoln. Excavations show the outline of the fort,
which covers approximately one acre,

The Federal monument to the Confederate prisoners

ent to Confederate soldiers. It is still maintained
by the Federal Government.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (Include Personages, Dates, Events, Etc.)

Near the outbreak of the Civil War the Federal
Government built Hammond General Hospital at Point Lookout
for Union Soldiers. After the battle of Gettysburg it
became a nrison for Confederate soldiers. By the end of
the war there were over 20,000 orisoners at the Point.
~——The famous writer Sydney Lanier was one of the orisoners,

Conditions were so bad and the orisoners were so
mistreated that 27% of them died. This compares with the
21% mortality rate at the famous Confederate Andersonville
Prison in Georgia.

After the war the vrisoners were set free and had to
walk home from Point Lookout. Many of them passed through
Leonardtown, the County Seat of St. Mary's County, and
wWere aided by the citizens.

Many of the bodies of the brisoners who died were
moved to their former homes in the South by their families.
Those that remain are marked by the Federal monument ,_a’

A bronze plaque oa-whish states simply:

"Zrected by the United States to mark the burial vlace
of Confederate soldiers and sailors who died at Point
Lookout Maryland while prisoners of war and were buried
to the number of 3384, but whose remains were subsequently
removed either to their resvective homes, or to this
cemetery where the individual geawss cannot be identified.,"
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